
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : CRIMINAL NO.

v. : DATE FILED: May 6,2010

FARDAN ASMAR ABDUL-ALMUID : VIOLATIONS:

a/k/a " Fardan Asmar Foster" 18 U.S.C. § 2423(b) (traveling for the

: purpose of engaging in illicit sexual

conduct -1 count)

: 18 U.S.C. § 2423(c) (engaging in illicit

sexual conduct in foreign places -1 count)

INDICTMENT

COUNT ONE

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

1. At all times material to this indictment, defendant FARDAN ASMAR

ABDUL-ALMUID, a/k/a "Fardan Asmar Foster," was a citizen of the United States. Defendant

ALMUID was born in February 1981.

2. In approximately 2002, defendant FARDAN ASMAR ABDUL-ALMUID

entered into a union purporting to be an Islamic marriage with T.S.D., a minor female whose

name is known to the grand jury. T.S.D. was approximately thirteen years old at the time and

was born in February 1989.

3. From approximately 2002 through approximately 2005, defendant

FARDAN ASMAR ABDUL-ALMUID engaged in a sexual relationship with T.S.D. in Egypt,

including sexual intercourse.

4. On or about October 20, 2003, in Egypt, when T.S.D. was fourteen years



old, she gave birth to a daughter, S.A., whose name is known to the grand jury. Defendant

FARDAN ASMAR ABDUL-ALMUID is S.A.'s biological father and the child was conceived

by defendant ALMUID and T.S.D. in Egypt in 2003 when T.S.D. was thirteen years old.

5. From approximately January 18, 2003 through on or about February 10,

2003, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant

FARDAN ASMAR ABDUL-ALMUID,

a/k/a "Fardan Asmar Foster,"

a United States citizen, traveled in foreign commerce, from the United States to Egypt for the

purpose of engaging in any sexual act (as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2246),

with a person less than 16 years of age, in violation of Chapter 109A.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2423(b).



COUNT TWO

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs one through four of Count One are incorporated here.

2. From on or about June 11, 2003, through on or about February 2005, in

the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendant

FARDAN ASMAR ABDUL-ALMUID,

a/k/a "Fardan Asmar Foster,"

a United States citizen, traveled in foreign commerce to Egypt, and while in Egypt, engaged in

illicit sexual conduct, as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2423(f), with T.S.D., a

person less than 16 years old whose name is known to the Grand Jury.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2423(c).
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